
 
 

 

 
 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

 

 

10.00 am 

 

Friday 8 January 2016 

 

Members' Room Members' Room Members' Room Members' Room ----    Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, 

GloucesterGloucesterGloucesterGloucester 

 

MEETING PAPERS 

 



 
 



 
 

 

      
 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 
 

TIME: 10.00 am 

DATE: Friday 8 January 2016 

VENUE: Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 
A G E N D A 

 
ITEM TOPIC CONTACT 

1. Apologies for absence  Joanne Bolton 
 

2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)  
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2015. 

 
Joanne Bolton 
 

3. Public Questions   
 To answer any written public questions about matters which are 

within the powers and duties of the Committee.  The closing 
date/time for receipt of questions is 10.00am on 4 January 
2016.  To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the 
public with the consent of the Chairperson. 
 
Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in 
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as 
reasonably possible after the meeting. 
 

Joanne Bolton 
 

4. Members' Questions   
 To answer any written members’ questions.  The closing 

date/time for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 4 January 
2016. 
 

Joanne Bolton 
 

5. Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel (Pages 5 - 10)  
 To consider the report and recommendations of the Panel. 

 
Richard Blamey 
 

6. Motion 763 -  referred from County Council 2 December 2015   
 The following Motion (proposed by Cllr Jeremy Hilton and 

seconded by Cllr Iain Dobie) was received at the full Council 
meeting held on 2 December 2015, and was referred to the 
Constitution Committee for consideration: 
 
 This Council expresses deep concern over the Cabinet’s 

decision on 11 November 2015 to approve a £17 million 
one-off financial contribution to the residual waste project, 

Cllr Jeremy Hilton 
 



 

      
 

funded from revenue reserves. 
 This Council believes that redirections of such significant 

sums should be approved by all members of this Council. 
  
 The Council therefore recommends that the Constitution 

Committee considers changes to standing orders and 
reports back to full Council at the earliest opportunity. 

 
The Committee is asked to consider the matters raised in the 
Motion and, if necessary, to make recommendations accordingly. 
 

7. Modifications to the Petition Scheme (Pages 11 - 18)  
 To consider the attached report. 

 
Simon Harper 
 

8. Monitoring Officer changes to the Constitution (Pages 19 - 22)  
 To consider the attached report. 

 
Jane Burns 
 

 

NOTES 

(a) MEMBERSHIP –Cllr Colin Guyton, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, 
Cllr Nigel Moor, Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, 
Cllr Lesley Williams and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 
 

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting.  
 

(c) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect 
reports relating to any item on this Agenda or have any other general queries 
about the meeting, please contact  
 
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services  
�: 01452 324202/fax: 425850/e-mail: simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

  

 
 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



 

- 1 - 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Constitution Committee held on Wednesday 10 June 

2015 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 

PRESENT 

MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Colin Guyton 

Cllr Mark Hawthorne 

Cllr Jeremy Hilton 

Cllr Brian Oosthuysen 

 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou 

Cllr Lesley Williams 

Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 

 

Substitutes: Cllr Phil Awford (in place of Cllr Nigel Moor)  

 

Apologies: 

 

Officers: 

Cllr Klara Sudbury and Cllr Nigel Moor 

 

Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring 

Officer 

Christine Wray, Head of Legal Services 

Dilys Wynn, Director of People Services 

Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services 

Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser 

 

15. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE 2015-16 CIVIC YEAR  
 

15.1 Cllr Mark Hawthorne was appointed Chairman of the Constitution Committee for the 

2015-16 civic year. 

 

15.2 The Committee agreed not to appoint a vice chair for the 2015-16 civic year.  

Members acknowledged that in the absence of the Chairman at a meeting, the 

Committee would follow the usual practice of appointing a member as Chairman for 

the duration of that meeting.  

 
16. MINUTES  

 
 The minutes of the previous meeting of 10 June 2015 were approved as a correct 

record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
17. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 
No public questions were received. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 2 - 
 

18. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  
 
No questions from members were received. 

 
19. THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) (AMENDMENT) 

REGULATIONS 2015  
 

19.1 Dilys Wynn, Director of People Services, explained that the Local Authorities 

(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015, came into force on 

11 May 2015.  The effect of the Regulations would be to change and localise the 

disciplinary process for the most senior officers of the Council, i.e. the Head of Paid 

Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer.  

 

19.2 The Committee noted that the Council was required to modify the standing orders 

to implement the changes no later than the first ordinary meeting of the Council 

after 11 May 2015.  The Committee acknowledged that whilst the Council had no 

choice in implementing the changes to local government law, the changes did have 

contract of employment implications for the officers involved, which were currently 

unresolved.  

 

19.4 Members of the Committee recognised that there was also a whole range of other 

issues which would need to be worked through in detail, relating to how the new 

process would work in practice.  Officers reported that the Local Government 

Association was liaising with the Department for Communities and Local 

Government to consider the practicalities of how local authorities would deliver the 

new process, and also the contract of employment implications for those senior 

officers.  Further guidance from the LGA to local authorities was expected shortly.   

 

19.5 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the amendments to the 

Constitution set out in Annex 2 of the report relating to The Functions of the Full 

Council, Appointments Committee and Officer Employment Procedure Rules, be 

approved and recommended to full Council for adoption. 

 
20. CHANGES TO THE EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT  

 
20.1 Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer, informed 

the Committee that the Employee Code of Conduct had been revised following a 

recent review.   

 

 The main changes related to:  

 

Ø Up-dated information on procurement and contract management. 

Ø Cross-referencing the Rules on Access to Information in respect of disclosure 

of information to members. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 3 - 
 

Ø Cross-referencing the protocol on the relationship between members and 

officers in respect of officers’ political neutrality. 

Ø Minor typographical changes. 

 

20.2 The Committee agreed that paragraph 62, Political Neutrality, on page 10 of the 

Employee Code of Conduct, should be amended to read: 

 

 ‘Employees other than the political assistants must serve all Councillors and 

not just those of a single controlling group…..’ 

 

ACTION: Jane Burns 

 

20.3 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revised Employee 

Code of Conduct be approved and adopted. 

 
21. ITEMS REQUESTED BY CLLR LESLEY WILLIAMS  

 
21.1 Cllr Lesley Williams informed the Committee that at the Annual Meeting of the 

Council held on 20 May, Cllr Steve Lydon requested that the Constitution 

Committee consider the principle that chairs of the overview and scrutiny 

committees should be drawn from opposition political groups and not just the 

political group running the Council.  He was also calling for the way the Cabinet 

operated to be looked at, particularly the arrangements for allowing questions.  

 

21.2 The Chairman said that one of the principles of the Cabinet model was that non-

executive members scrutinise the Cabinet.  He stated that  it was recognised as 

good practice for chairs of the overview and scrutiny committees to be drawn from 

political groups across the Council and not just from the opposition groups.   This 

was an approach followed by this Council and many others.  Most members of the 

Committee were of the view that this approach helped to shape a balanced non-

political scrutiny process. 

 

21.3 The Chairman acknowledged that the 30 minutes allocated to consider member 

and public questions at Cabinet meetings was often not enough time to consider all 

of the supplementary questions from members.  He noted that members had the 

opportunity to engage through ‘Shadows’ and the scrutiny process.  They could 

also raise supplementary questions with the Cabinet Member outside of the 

meeting.  There was recognition amongst members of the committee that whilst this 

was the case, members often still wanted the opportunity to raise their questions 

with the Cabinet Member during the public Cabinet meeting. 

 

21.4 Cllr Lesley Williams asked for consideration to be given to the suggestion that 

members of the opposition groups should be able to become part of the Cabinet.  In 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 
 

 

- 4 - 
 

response, the Chairman explained that the Council was structured and operated 

according to the Leader and Cabinet model.  To change this would mean 

navigating away from this system which was not a realistic option.  There did not 

appear to be an appetite for change. 

 

21.5 To conclude the discussion, the Chairman asked that members of the committee 

speak to their political group colleagues about the arrangements for questions at 

Cabinet meetings, and provide feedback and any suggestions for change to Cllr 

Lesley Williams. 

 
22. MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION  

 
22.1 Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services, informed the Committee that the need 

for this amendment was picked up at a recent meeting of the Pensions Committee, 

where it was agreed that the Pensions Board should always have a pensions 

member representative and an employer representative present, for a meeting to 

proceed.  Consequently the Pension Committee agreed that the Board would have 

a formal quorum of 3 to include one employer representative and one member 

representative. 

 

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL to ratify the changes to the 

Constitution  by the Monitoring Officer under delegated powers, regarding 

paragraph 4 Quorum, of the terms of reference of the Pensions Board, under part 3 

(Responsibility for Functions), Section 3.5 of the Constitution. 

 
 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

The meeting ended at 2.35pm. 

 

 

Page 4



1 
 

 
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

 

DECEMBER 2015  

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 This report has been produced by an Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) 

made up of members drawn from the local community.  The Panel is 

independent of the Council and its role is to make recommendations on the 

level of allowances paid to councillors. The object being to promote access to 

all in our diverse community who may wish to stand for election to serve that 

community via the democratic process.   

 

1.2   The members of the Panel: 

 
Ø Richard Blamey Former Pensions Manager with a large multi-national 

industrial gas company. Currently a pensions trustee. 

Recently appointed chair of the Tewkesbury IRP. Also 

serves as treasurer and member of his local parish 

council.    

 

Ø Philip Lowery A former adviser to the Social Services Committee.  

Member of the Independent Advisory Group (IAG) of 

the Criminal Justice Board.  

 

Ø Fiona Miles Former Clinical Nurse Specialist in Respiratory 

Medicine.  Former Treasurer and Secretary to play 

groups and the Royal College of Nursing Specialist 

Group.  Trustee of Gloucestershire Chest Fund.  Also 

a parish councillor, school governor and involved in 

Gloucestershire Girl Guiding and the RSPB. 

 
Ø Gwyn Morgan  Former Head of Science at a Gloucestershire 

Secondary School.  Broad experience of the 

education system as a teacher and a school governor.  

Custody Visitor with high level security clearance. 

 
Ø Quentin Tallon Former Secretary of Cheltenham and District TUC 

with broad experience of trade union and other 

negotiations.  Involvement with the voluntary sector. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



2 
 

 
 

1.3 Sadly, Gwyn Morgan passed away on 18 November 2015. The Panel wish to 

pass on their condolences to Gwyn’s family and friends. He was a much 

valued member of the Panel and will be greatly missed.  

 

1.4 The Panel’s recommendations relate to a two year period (2016-17 and 2017-

18) and are in keeping with the following statutory provisions: 

 

1.4.1 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Local Government Act 

2006 

 

1.4.2 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 

2003 (‘The Allowances Regulations’) 

 

  

2. Review process  

 

2.1 The Panel met on 9 April and 10 November 2015.  Interviews with 21 

councillors were conducted on 19, 26 and 28 October 2015. Members were 

asked about their roles both at the Council and within their communities.  

They were also invited to give their views on the current allowances scheme.  

The Panel appreciated the willingness of members to be open and frank in 

their responses to the interview questions.   

 

2.2 The Panel recognises the commitment of all County Councillors to the people 

of Gloucestershire and commends them on their untiring efforts in this cause. 

 
2.3 The Panel recognises the support given to councillors by the Democratic 

Services Team and the value of an ongoing member development programme 

to help members understand their roles and responsibilities.  They believe, 

however, there may be a case for tailored support to be provided to individual 

members who join the Council with no previous experience of local 

government.    

 

 
3. Allowances 

 
3.1 In our previous reports in 2013 and 2014, we stated clearly that the 

appropriate rate for the Basic Allowance should be at least £10,000. One year 

on, we continue to hold this view. Indeed, the comparative data we have 

analysed reveals that both the average and median figures for the Basic 

Allowances are in the region of £10,300. Against this background the current 

Page 6



3 
 

Basic Allowance of £9,100 clearly undervalues the role of our County 

Councillors [see Appendix A]. 

 

3.2 Accordingly, in this report, the Panel is recommending that Basic Allowances 

increase from £9,100 to £10,000 for 2016-17, with no further increases in 

2017-18. The Panel is aware of the economic climate but in the face of the 

existing data, we simply cannot recommend a Basic Allowance of less than 

£10,000. 

 

3.3 The Panel is recommending that all other allowances remain fixed at their 

2015-16 level [see Appendix B]. We recognise that this will remove the 

principle of using the Basic Allowance as a ‘building block’ for the Special 

Responsibility Allowances and we will address this issue in 2017 as part of a 

thorough review following the May 2017 elections.  

 

4. Recommendations  

 

4.1  Basic Allowance  

 To increase the Basic Allowance from £9,100 to £10,000 for a two year period 

from 1 April 2016. 

 

4.2 Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) 

 To maintain all Special Responsibility Allowances as a fixed sum at their 

2015-16 level.  

 

 

Richard Blamey 

Chairman  

Independent Remuneration Panel for Gloucestershire County Council  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



4 
 

Appendix A – basic allowance for county councils across England 

 

Local Authority Current Basic Allowance 

(November 2015) 

Number of Councillors 

Buckinghamshire County Council £11,063.35 49 

Cambridgeshire County Council £7,700 69 

Cumbria County Council £8,322.00 84 

Derbyshire County Council £10,047.00 64 

Devon County Council £10,970.00 62 

Dorset County Council £10,641.00 45 

East Sussex County Council £11,080.00 49 

Essex County Council £11,500.00 75 

Gloucestershire County Council £9,100.00 53 

Hampshire County Council £12,003.00 78 

Hertfordshire County Council £9,781.00 77 

Kent County Council £12,805.00 84 

Lancashire County Council £10,362.00 84 

Leicestershire County Council £10,152.00 55 

Lincolnshire County Council £10,322.28 77 

Norfolk County Council £9,216.00 84 

North Yorkshire County Council £8,994.00 72 

Northamptonshire County 

Council 

£9,054.00 57 

Nottinghamshire County Council £13,190.00 67 

Oxfordshire County Council £10,000.00 63 

Somerset County Council £10,580.00 55 

Staffordshire County Council £9,022.00 62 

Suffolk County Council £10,273.74 75 

Surrey County Council £12,418.00 81 

Warwickshire County Council £9,172.00 62 

West Sussex County Council £11,251.00 71 

Worcestershire County Council £8,515.00 57 

   

The Average Basic Allowance 

equals to : £10,279.05 

 

   Neighbouring unitary  councils 

covering county areas 

  Herefordshire Council £7,254.00 53 

Wiltshire Council £12,684.95 98 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



5 
 

 

Appendix B – proposed allowances for 2016-17 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Basic allowance (BA) 

  

£10,000 

   Number of members 

  

53 

   

       Special responsibility allowances (SRA) 

   

Positions  Allowance  

      

 

Leader of the Council 

   

1 £27,300  

      

 

      

 

Group leader (5 or more members) Lib Dem 14 

 

1 £5,850  

(Not paid to Leader of the Council) Labour 9 

 

1 £5,850  

Group Leader (4 members or less) Independent  2 

 

1 £2,340  

 

UKIP 3 

 

1 £3,510  

      

 

Cabinet member 

   

7 £18,200  

      

 

Scrutiny chair 

   

5 £5,460  

      

 

Audit and Governance Committee chair 

   

1 £5,460  

      

 

Planning Committee chair 

   

1 £5,460  

      

 

Pensions Committee chair 

   

1 £5,460  

      

 

Chair of Council 

   

1 £9,100  

      

 

Vice-chair of Council 

   

1 £2,730  

      

 

Adoption Panel member 

   

2 £5,460  

      

 

Fostering Panel member 

   

1 £5,460  

      

 

Political Group Spokesperson 

   

14 £1,500  

       

       

       

       

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

8 January 2016 

PETITION SCHEME  

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Council is no longer required by law to have a petition scheme. The current 

scheme was introduced in June 2010 in line with the statutory requirements 

that were in place at that time. The Localism Act 2011 leaves it to individual 

councils to decide whether to have a procedure for receiving petitions.   

1.2 Appended to this report at Annex A is a proposed revised scheme, which the 

Constitution Committee is invited to comment on and make appropriate 

recommendations to full Council.  

1.3 The revised scheme has been presented to Group Leaders and the changes 

proposed were supported.  Group Leaders suggested that a flow chart be 

developed so that the public could follow the steps required in presenting a 

petition.  A flow chart is appended to this report at Annex B. 

 

2 Background 

2.1 The revised scheme amends the scheme agreed in 2010 to reflect current 

working practice and feedback received from the public.  

2.2 The scheme has been redrafted so that it follows a more logical format and 

links across to the new flow chart.  The main changes are highlighted below: 

a) Recognition that paper and electronic petitions can be combined. 

b) The timescale for responding to petitions has been reduced from 28 to 20 

working days. 

c) The provision for calling an officer to give evidence at a scrutiny 

committee has been removed. 

d) More information has been included on the actions that can be taken in 

response to a petition.    

 

2.3 Advice and guidance on the petition scheme will continue to be provided 

through Democratic Services.  All petitions are received by Democratic 

Services and responses are co-ordinated by staff in that office.  This has 

worked well and has ensured that there is a consistent approach to responding 

to petitions. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



2.4 Members of the public will continue to have the opportunity to present petitions 

at full Council meetings subject to reaching the minimum number of signatories 

(5,000).  Lead petitioners are expected to run e-petitions through the Council’s 

website since the Council has no means of validating other electronic petitions. 

2.5 On rare occasions, officers have been called to give evidence to a scrutiny 

committee.  This requirement was included in the original legislation but in 

practice has not resulted in satisfactory outcomes for petitioners.  Officers were 

placed in difficult positions because of the political nature of the issues raised 

and scrutiny committees were not the appropriate forums for debate. This 

provision has therefore been removed from the revised scheme. 

 

3 Recommendation 

To recommend that the Council  

a) Approve the revised petition scheme at Appendix A including the 

associated flow chart at Appendix B.   

 

b) Include the petition scheme in part 5 of the Council’s constitution under 

‘codes and protocols’. 

 

 

Simon Harper 

Head of Democratic Services 

Tel 01452 324202 

Email simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk  

Page 12



Appendix 1 

Gloucestershire County Council Petition Scheme 

 
The Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in which 

people can let us know their concerns.  In the first instance you should always try to 

speak to an officer in the relevant department or your local county councillor to 

discuss your particular concerns.   

 

Anyone wishing to organise a petition should contact Democratic Services (Tel: 

Simon Harper 01452 324202, email simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk) who will 

provide advice on the procedures that apply.  It may be that in some instances it is 

more appropriate for issues to be raised in other ways – for example through your 

local councillor or the complaints process. 

 

All petitions sent or presented to the Council will receive an acknowledgement from 

the Council within 5 working days of receipt, and within 20 working days of receipt of 

the petition, we will set out what we plan to do with the petition.  

 

Paper petitions can be sent to the address below or be created, signed and 

submitted online. 

 

Gloucestershire County Council  

c/o Democratic Services 

Shire Hall 

Gloucester 

GL1 2TG  

 

You can also request that your local county councillor presents a petition at a full 

Council meeting.  Dates and times can be found here 

(http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1).  

 

Please contact Democratic Services (tel Simon Harper 01452 324202, email 

simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk) at least 10 clear working days before the 

meeting and they will talk you through the process.  

 

To come within the scheme and trigger a response a petition needs a minimum of 25  

signatures from people who live, work or study in Gloucestershire.  Petitions with 

fewer signatures can still be submitted but they will not be treated in accordance with 

this scheme.    

 

If your petition has received 5,000 signatures or more it will be scheduled for a 

Council debate and, if this is the case, we will let you know when this will take place. 

 
 

Page 13



What are the guidelines for submitting a petition? 

Petitions submitted to the Council should relate to a matter which is a function of the 

Council or relate to the economic, social or environmental well being of 

Gloucestershire.  They should have at least 25 signatures and must include: 

 

•  A clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition and include 

details of what action the petitioners wish the Council to take.  

• The name, the address in Gloucestershire where they live work or study and 

signature of any person supporting the petition. 

 

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address for the 

petition organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain how we will respond 

to the petition. The contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the 

website. If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact 

signatories to the petition to agree who should act as the petition organiser. 

 

Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate 

will not be accepted. In the period immediately before an election or referendum we 

may need to deal with your petition differently – if this is the case we will explain the 

reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will apply. If a petition does not 

follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may decide not to do anything 

further with it. In that case, we will write to you to explain the reasons. The Council’s 

statutory officers (Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer or Monitoring Officer) 

will be responsible for determining the validity of a petition. In addition, the 

Monitoring Officer can accept signatures from people living, working or studying 

outside the county border where, for example, there is an issue which is relevant to 

Gloucestershire and also to an area that borders the county.  

 

What will the Council do when it receives my petition? 

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within five working days of 

receiving the petition.  Within 20 working days we will provide a written response to 

the petition organiser. 

 

If the petition affects a particular area the county councillors covering that area will 

be informed that a petition has been received. 

 

If the petition has enough signatures to trigger a Council debate, then the 

acknowledgment will confirm this and tell you when and where the meeting will take 

place.  

 

If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition (for 

example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter 

where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as a school admission 

appeal, other procedures apply.  

Page 14



 

If your petition is about something over which the Council has no direct control (for 

example the local railway or hospital) we will refer the petition to the relevant body 

and ask that they provide a response to you.  

 

Full Council debates 

If a petition contains more than 5,000 signatures it will be debated by the full Council.  

This means that the issue raised in the petition will be discussed at a meeting which 

all councillors can attend. The Council will endeavour to consider the petition at its 

next meeting, although on some occasions this may not be possible and 

consideration will then take place at the following meeting. Petitions must be 

received by Democratic Services at least 10 clear working days ahead of the 

meeting. 

 

The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present the petition at the meeting 

and the petition will then be discussed by councillors for 15 minutes.  This may be 

extended at the discretion of the Chair of Council up to a maximum of 30 minutes.  

 

The options open to the Council are limited.  The Council may simply decide to note 

the petition.  Where the issue is one on which the Council executive is required to 

make the final decision, the Council will decide whether to make recommendations 

to inform that decision.  

 

E-petitions  

The Council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through our 

website. E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions.  The petition 

organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal address and email address. 

You will also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be open for 

signatures.  

 

If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you within 

this time to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your petition if you wish. 

When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted to 

Democratic Services. In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an 

acknowledgement within five working days and a formal response within 20 working 

days. 

 

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who has 

signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information.  

 

E-petitions may be combined at the request of the petition organiser with paper 

petitions.  The wording of both petitions must be the same if the petitions are being 

brought together to reach the 5,000 signatures required for a debate at full Council.   

 

Page 15



 

How do I sign an e-petition?  

You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature on the Council’s 

website.  When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, the 

address in Gloucestershire where you live work and study and a valid email address. 

When you have submitted this information you will be sent an email to the email 

address you have provided. This email will include a link which you must click on in 

order to confirm the email address is valid. Once this step is complete your 

‘signature’ will be added to the petition. People visiting the e-petition will be able to 

see your name in the list of those who have signed it but your contact details will not 

be visible. 

 

 

Page 16



Appendix B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submit the petition to Democratic Services either as an 

e-petition or by paper to: 

Gloucestershire County Council, c/o Democratic 

Services, Shire Hall, Gloucester, GL1 2TG. 

Does the petition relate 

to the Council or the 

economic, social or 

environmental impact of 

Gloucestershire? 

Has the concern or 

issue been discussed 

with the relevant County 

Council officer or your 

local County Councillor? 

Does the petition have 

at least 25 signatures 

from people who live, 

work or study in 

Gloucestershire? 

It should not be presented to the Council but to 

another relevant organisation, if appropriate.  

Contact the relevant County Council officer, your local 

County Councillor, or seek advice from Democratic 

Services. 

Decide whether to seek further signatures, or raise 

your concern or issue directly with the relevant County 

Council officer or your local County Councillor. 

   Start 

 No 

  Yes 

  Yes 

  Yes 

 No 

 No 

How do I submit a petition to the County Council? 

Please continue 

overleaf. 

Page 17



 

Does the petition have 

more than 5,000 

signatures? 

  Yes 

 No 

What happens after a petition has been submitted to the County Council? 

The petition organiser is advised of the outcome of the 

debate in writing. 

The petition will then be discussed by the full Council 

for 15 minutes. This may be extended at the discretion 

of the Chair of the Council up to a maximum of 30 

minutes. 

The petition will be acknowledged within 5 working 

days. 

The petition organiser will receive a formal written 

response from the Council within 20 working days. 

The full council will vote on action to be taken. This 

may simply be to note the petition or, if the issue is one 

in which the Cabinet is required to make a decision, 

the Council may make recommendations to inform that 

decision. 

   Start 

The petition will be scheduled for debate by the full 

Council. 

At the full Council meeting, the petition organiser will 

be given 5 minutes to present the petition. 

Page 18



S:\CommisisoningExecutive\Jane Burns\Cabinet and Committee Reports 

 
Changes to Gloucestershire County Council Constitution 

 
By the Monitoring Officer 

 
In the exercise of my powers set out in Article 14.02.1 of the Council’s Constitution, I 
make the following amendments to the Council’s Constitution: 
 
11.2.2 “Unless the Chairperson, in consultation with Group Leaders decides 

otherwise, subject to Procedural Standing Order 11.8, there will be no 
time restrictions on motions from each political group (for the purposes 
of this Procedural Standing Order 11.2.2 only, all independent 
Councillors are considered as a political group).  Immediately after the 
end of the debate the proposer of the original motion then under 
debate may choose whether the motion be put or withdrawn (the 
consent of the seconder and full Council not being required in these 
circumstances) and if he or she decides that the motion be put, he or 
she shall first have the right of reply which shall be limited to 3 
minutes;” 

 
 Reason for amendment is that this paragraph previously referred to a 

30 minutes time limit per political group.  The paragraph is redundant. 
 
13.8 Withdrawal of motion or amendment. 
 

A Member may withdraw a motion or amendment to a motion which he 
or she has moved, with the consent of both the full Council and the 
seconder.  The full Council’s and seconder’s consent will be given or 
not given, without discussion.  No Member may speak on the motion or 
amendment to motion after the mover has asked permission to 
withdraw unless permission to withdraw is refused. This Procedural 
Standing Order shall not apply to the circumstances pertaining under 
Procedural Standing Order 11.2.2. 

 
 This sentence refers to the above point and is therefore also 

redundant. 
 
20 Members Interests in Contracts and Other Matters. 
 
 Any member of the Council who has a disclosable personal pecuniary 

interest (within the terms of the Code of Conduct for Members adopted 
under the Localism Act 2011) in any matter except one that is under 
consideration by the Council as part of the report of the Cabinet or 
other appropriate Council body and is not itself the subject of debate, 
shall inform the meeting and act in accordance with the relevant 
code of conduct. 

 
 Any disclosure, withdrawal or dispensation under this rule shall be 

recorded in the Minutes of the meeting concerned. 
 
 Inaccurate wording. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 19



S:\CommisisoningExecutive\Jane Burns\Cabinet and Committee Reports 

Call-in Procedural Rules 
 
5.2 Note: A political Group Leader may request clarification from and/or 

discussion with one or more of the six five members giving 
notice and other political Group Leaders. 

 
  Inaccurate wording. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jane Burns 
Monitoring Officer 
21 December 2015 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
	7 Modifications to the Petition Scheme
	Appendix A - revised petition scheme
	Appendix B - petition scheme flow chart

	8 Monitoring Officer changes to the Constitution
	MO change Item 8b


